
 

 
       
     

Minutes of the  
Colonial Beach Town Council  

Budget Work Session 
April 15, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 

And Continued on April 23, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 

Colonial Beach Town Center 
22 Washington Avenue 

Colonial Beach, VA 22443 
 
 
 
 

Present  
 Mayor, Mike Ham 

 Vice Mayor, Tommy Edwards 

 Member, Pete Bone 

 Member, Linda Brubaker 

 Member, Jim Chiarello 

 Member, Wanda Goforth 

 Member, Gary Seeber 

  

  

Also Present  
 Town Manager, Val Foulds 

 CFO, Joan Grant 

 Town Clerk, Kathleen Flanagan 

 

Town Council Call to Order 
Mayor Ham called the Budget Work Session to order at 10:04 a.m.   

 

Roll Call of Town Council Members 
All members of Town Council were present. 

 

Budget Discussion 
Ms. Foulds presented an overview of the audit process, noting there is a 5% threshold tolerance 

or variance from the previous year’s audit.  Ms. Foulds noted that for the current fiscal year the 

variances are all over the map. 

 



 

Mayor Ham noted that the Westmoreland County Board of Supervisors met last night and 

proposed a $.03 cent property tax increase and a sewer tax increase in Cople, Montross and 

Washington. 

 

Mr. Seeber asked why revenue projections for real estate tax are down in this budget. Ms. Grant 

answered the projections had been over estimated and the numbers reflected in this new budget 

are realistic. 

 

Mr. Bone asked if council members are comfortable with the revenue numbers as presented. 

There was council agreement with the revenue numbers. 

 

Ms. Foulds discussed the increase in FICA expenditures, noting that the increase reflects an 

average of three years’ worth of actual expenditures. 

 

Ms. Foulds noted Town Council contingency had increased by $5,000.  

 

Ms. Brubaker suggested omitting employee year-end bonuses because there will be no tax 

increases and omitting the additional $5,000 in contingency funds.  

 

Ms. Foulds noted that property liability insurance went down and line of duty insurance went up.  

 

Ms. Foulds noted there is $40,000 allocated to purchase one vehicle for the Police Department at 

$24,000, with a carry-forward of $12,000 to the next year for another vehicle purchase. 

 

Dispatch services is showing a $40,000 difference; the first year called for $270,000.  The 

agreement projected $270,000 in 2014.   

 

Ms. Brubaker asked about a proffer agreement in place for the fire department. Ms. Foulds noted 

currently that upon occupancy per unit the owners provide a proffer of $2,000 for the fire 

department and $2,000 for the rescue squad.  

 

Ms. Foulds noted no funds are budgeted for non-VDOT roads and those roads are no longer 

eligible for revenue sharing program. 

 

Recess 
At 11:51 a.m. Mayor Ham called a recess. 

 

Reconvene 
At 12:05 p.m. Mayor Ham reconvened the meeting.   

 

Motion to Recess 
Mr. Chiarello made a motion to recess until Thursday.  There was no second to the motion. The 

motion to recess until Thursday failed. 

 

Ms. Foulds continued to discuss:  fire department roof; Buildings and Grounds increase; 

equipment purchases; clean-up of Castlewood Park;   E&S inspection services performed by the 



 

county; water and sewer fund; kiosk placement; purchase of a new trash truck; among other 

items. 

 

Recess 
At 12:31 a.m. Mayor Ham called a lunch recess. 

 

Reconvene 
At 1:35 p.m. Mayor Ham reconvened the meeting.   

 

Ms. Goforth questioned the use of cell phones by town staff and believes $28,100 per year is too 

high.  

 

Mayor Ham opened a discussion regarding the school transfer. The balanced budget before 

council includes $1,532,321 for the school transfer. The school has requested $2,537,004.   

 

Ms. Brubaker noted the school request does include a 2% across the board pay raise.  

 

Mayor Ham noted the $400,000-plus to move the elementary school to the high school campus 

and the $700,000 to $800,000 upgrades to the high school are covered in the bond issue.   

 

Mr. Bone noted the bond issue for the school will require a $.02 cent increase in real estate taxes; 

to fully fund the general fund will require a $.02 cent increase in real estate taxes; and to fully 

fund the operational budget for the school will require a $.02 cent increase in real estate taxes. 

 

Mr. Bone noted that $900,000 is approximately a $.22 cent tax increase. 

 

J.D. Martin then discussed a document called “In a Nutshell” that he provided to council, saying 

there is no fat in the requested budget by the school. Mr. Martin noted the school had already 

made cuts in operations and maintenance.  

 

Mr. Martin noted there are three items different in this budget: bringing special education back 

in-house; a reduction in state funds of approximately $127,000; increased mod pod payments of 

approximately $111,000; and increased payments to VRS.  

 

Mayor Ham noted a $.25 cent tax increase would be $.68 cents per day per $100,000 of value for 

every resident in town.   A $.15 cent tax increase would be $41.1 cents per day per $100,000 of 

value for every resident in town.   

 

Mayor Ham recommended advertising a $.25 cent tax increase. 

 

Mr. Seeber recommended adding $.01 cent tax increase to meals and lodging earmarked 

specifically for tourism. 

 

Recess/Adjournment 

At 3:17 p.m. Mayor Ham recessed the meeting until Wednesday, April 23, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 



 

 

 

 

_________________________________ _______________________________________ 

Kathleen Flanagan, Town Clerk  Mike Ham, Mayor 

 


